

SENATE DAILY HISTORY

1957

SENATE BILLS

S. B. 1—Johnson, Jan. 21.

Summary—Creates Legislative Fund.

Jan. 21—Read first time. Declared an emergency measure under the Constitution. Read third time. Passed. Title approved. To Assembly.

Jan. 22—In Assembly. Read first time. Declared an emergency measure under the Constitution. Read third time. Passed. Title approved. To Senate. In Senate. To enrollment.

Jan. 23—Enrolled and delivered to Governor. Approved by the Governor. Chapter No. 1.

S. B. 2—Committee on Judiciary, Jan. 22.

Summary—Enacts Nevada Revised Statutes as the law of the State of Nevada to supersede all prior laws of a general, public and permanent nature.

Jan. 22—Read first time. Declared an emergency measure under the Constitution. Read third time. Passed. Title approved. To Assembly.

Jan. 23—In Assembly. Read first time. Declared an emergency measure under the Constitution. Read third time. Passed. Title approved. To Senate. In Senate.

Jan. 24—To enrollment. Enrolled and delivered to Governor.

Jan. 25—Approved by the Governor. Chapter No. 2. ✓

S. B. 3—Committee on Judiciary, Jan. 22.

Summary—Establishes procedures for amending, supplementing and certifying Nevada Revised Statutes.

Jan. 22—Read first time. Declared an emergency measure under the Constitution. Read third time. Passed. Title approved. To Assembly.

Jan. 23—In Assembly. Read first time. Declared an emergency measure under the Constitution. Read third time. Passed. Title approved. To Senate.

Jan. 24—In Senate. To enrollment.

Jan. 25—Enrolled and delivered to Governor. Approved by the Governor. Chapter No. 3.

S. B. 4—Johnson, Jan. 24.

Summary—Amends dentistry and dental hygiene law relating to appointment of members and meetings of Board of Dental Examiners, examination of applicants, fees and regulation of dental laboratories.

Jan. 24—Read first time. Referred to Committee on Public Health. To printer.

Jan. 28—From printer. To committee.

Feb. 8—From committee: Amend, and do pass as amended. Read second time. Amended. To printer.

Feb. 11—From printer. To engrossment. Engrossed.

Feb. 12—Read third time. Amended. Reprinting dispensed with. Passed, as amended. Title approved, as amended. To re-engrossment. Re-engrossed. To Assembly.

Feb. 13—In Assembly. Read first time. Referred to Committee on Public Health and Public Morals. To committee.

Mar. 16—From committee: Do pass.

Mar. 17—Read second time.

Mar. 18—Read third time. Passed. Title approved. To Senate.

Mar. 19—In Senate. To enrollment.

Mar. 20—Enrolled and delivered to Governor.

Mar. 26—Approved by the Governor. Chapter No. 249.

The Rotary Club will meet Tuesday noon at the Carson Hot Springs.

The Honorable Rex Bell, Lieutenant Governor, State of Nevada:

DEAR MR. BELL: We are most pleased to ask the presence of yourself and also the presence of all fellow members of the Senate and their wives and the attachés at a complimentary dinner to be held at 7 p. m., Wednesday evening, January 23, 1957, at The Spa, Carson Hot Springs, Carson City, Nevada.

We are looking forward to the privilege and pleasure of seeing you tomorrow evening.

Most sincerely yours,

THOMAS D. WYATT, M.D., *Owner.*

GUESTS EXTENDED PRIVILEGE OF SENATE FLOOR

On request of Senator Crumley, the privilege of the floor of the Senate Chamber for this day was extended to Mr. Ward Swain.

Senator Lemaire moved that the Senate recess until 1:45 p. m.
Motion carried.

Senate in recess at 11:40 a. m.

SENATE IN SESSION

At 1:53 p. m.

Senator Settelmeyer, President pro tempore, presiding.

Quorum present.

Senator Lemaire moved that the Senate resolve itself into a Committee of the Whole for the purpose of meeting with a like committee in the Assembly to hear a report of the Statute Revision Commission, with Senator Settelmeyer as chairman of the Committee of the Whole.

Seconded by Senator Whitacre.

Motion carried.

IN COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE

On motion of Senator Lemaire, the committee did rise, and report back to the Senate.

SENATE IN SESSION

At 2:25 p. m.

Senator Settelmeyer, President pro tempore, presiding.

Quorum present.

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Mr. President:

Your Committee of the Whole has heard a report from the Statute Revision Commission.

FRED H. SETTELMAYER, *Chairman.*

INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING

By the Committee on Judiciary:

Senate Bill No. 2—An Act to revise the laws and statutes of the State of Nevada of a general or public nature; to adopt and enact such revised laws and statutes, to be known as the Nevada Revised Statutes, as the law of the State of Nevada; to repeal all prior laws and statutes of a general, public and permanent nature; providing penalties, and other matters relating thereto.

Senator Whitacre moved that all rules be suspended, reading so far had considered first reading, rules further suspended, bill considered engrossed, declared an emergency measure under the Constitution, and placed on third reading and final passage.

Seconded by Senator Lemaire.

Motion carried unanimously.

By the Committee on Judiciary:

Senate Bill No. 3—An Act to amend NRS Section 218.310 relating to drafting of bills and to amend NRS Sections 220.100, 220.130, 220.160 and 220.170 relating to the duties of the Statute Revision Commission.

Senator Whitacre moved that all rules be suspended, reading so far had considered first reading, rules further suspended, bill considered engrossed, declared an emergency measure under the Constitution, and placed on third reading and final passage.

Seconded by Senator Lemaire.

Motion carried unanimously.

GENERAL FILE AND THIRD READING

✓ Senate Bill No. 2.

Bill read third time.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 2:

YEAS—17.

NAYS—None.

Senate Bill No. 2 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. President pro tempore declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Assembly.

Senate Bill No. 3.

Bill read third time.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 3:

YEAS—17.

NAYS—None.

Senate Bill No. 3 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. President pro tempore declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Assembly.

MOTIONS, RESOLUTIONS, AND NOTICES

Mr. President instructed the Secretary to make the following announcement:

The Governor will deliver his message to a Joint Session of the Senate and Assembly on Wednesday, January 23, at 11 a. m.

Senator Lemaire moved that the Senate adjourn until Wednesday, January 23, 1957, at 11 a. m., in memory of the late Senator R. R. Orr.

Seconded by Senator Crumley.

Motion carried.

Senate adjourned at 4:05 p. m.

Approved:

REX BELL,
President of the Senate.

Attest: HERBERT E. ROWNTREE,
Secretary of the Senate.

21. Social welfare, seven members.
22. State Institutions, seven members.
23. State Libraries, five members.
24. State Publicity and Economic Development, five members.
25. Taxation, seven members.
26. Veterans Affairs, seven members.
27. Ways and Means, eleven members.

Mr. Nevin moved the adoption of the resolution.
Resolution adopted.

By the Committee on Legislative Functions:
Assembly Resolution No. 5—Providing an allowance for each member of the Assembly for periodicals, stamps and stationery.

Resolved by the Assembly of the State of Nevada, That the sum to be allowed each member of the Assembly for periodicals, stamps and stationery, as provided by law, be the sum of \$60, and that the same be certified by the Speaker and Chief Clerk to the State Controller.

Mr. Nevin moved the adoption of the resolution.
Resolution adopted.

✓ INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING

Senate Bill No. 2.

Mr. Barnum moved that all rules be suspended, reading so far had considered first reading, rules further suspended, bill considered engrossed, declared an emergency measure under the Constitution, and placed on third reading and final passage.

Motion carried unanimously.

Senate Bill No. 3.

Mr. Barnum moved that all rules be suspended, reading so far had considered first reading, rules further suspended, bill considered engrossed, declared an emergency measure under the Constitution, and placed on third reading and final passage.

Motion carried unanimously.

✓ GENERAL FILE AND THIRD READING

Senate Bill No. 2.

Bill read third time.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 2:

YEAS—47.

NAYS—None.

Senate Bill No. 2 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

Senate Bill No. 3.

Bill read third time.

Roll call on Senate Bill No. 3:

YEAS—47.

NAYS—None.

Senate Bill No. 3 having received a constitutional majority, Mr. Speaker declared it passed.

Bill ordered transmitted to the Senate.

LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

Passed at the

FORTY-EIGHTH SESSION OF THE LEGISLATURE

1957

Senate Bill No. 1—Senator Johnson

CHAPTER 1

AN ACT creating a legislative fund.

[Approved January 23, 1957]

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. For the purpose of paying the salaries, mileage, and the postage and stationery allowances of members of the 1957 Nevada legislature, the salaries of the attachés, and the incidental expenses of the respective houses thereof, and the unpaid expenses incurred by the 1956 special session of the Nevada legislature, the state treasurer is hereby authorized and required to set apart, from any money now in the general fund not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$150,000, which shall constitute the legislative fund.

SEC. 2. The state controller is hereby authorized and required to draw his warrants on the legislative fund in favor of the members and employees of the senate and assembly for per diem, mileage, stationery allowances, compensation, and incidental expenses of the respective houses, when properly certified in accordance with law, and the state treasurer is hereby authorized and required to pay the same.

SEC. 3. Any unexpended portion of the legislative fund shall revert to the general fund on December 31, 1959.

SEC. 4. This act shall become effective upon passage and approval.

Senate Bill No. 2—Committee on Judiciary

CHAPTER 2

AN ACT to revise the laws and statutes of the State of Nevada of a general or public nature; to adopt and enact such revised laws and statutes, to be known as the Nevada Revised Statutes, as the law of the State of Nevada; to repeal all prior laws and statutes of a general, public and permanent nature; providing penalties; and other matters relating thereto.

[Approved January 25, 1957]

The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly, do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. Enactment of Nevada Revised Statutes. The Nevada Revised Statutes, being the statute laws set forth after section 9 of this act, are hereby adopted and enacted as law of the State of Nevada.

SEC. 2. Designation and Citation. The Nevada Revised Statutes adopted and enacted into law by this act, and as hereafter amended and supplemented and printed and published pursuant to law, shall be known as Nevada Revised Statutes and may be cited as "NRS" followed by the number of the Title, chapter or section, as appropriate.

SEC. 3. Repeal of Prior Laws. Except as provided in section 5 of this act and unless expressly continued by specific provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes, all laws and statutes of the State of Nevada of a general, public and permanent nature enacted prior to January 21, 1957, hereby are repealed.

SEC. 4. Construction of Act.

1. The Nevada Revised Statutes, as enacted by this act, are intended to speak for themselves; and all sections of the Nevada Revised Statutes as so enacted shall be considered to speak as of the same date, except that in cases of conflict between two or more sections or of any ambiguity in a section, reference may be had to the acts from which the sections are derived, for the purpose of applying the rules of construction relating to repeal or amendment by implication or for the purpose of resolving the ambiguity.

2. The provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes as enacted by this act shall be considered as substituted in a continuing way for the provisions of the prior laws and statutes repealed by section 3 of this act.

3. The incorporation of initiated and referred measures is not to be deemed a legislative reenactment or amendment thereof, but only a mechanical inclusion thereof into the Nevada Revised Statutes.

4. The various analyses set out in Nevada Revised Statutes, constituting enumerations or lists of the Titles, chapters and sections of Nevada Revised Statutes, and the descriptive headings or catchlines immediately preceding or within the texts of individual sections, except the section numbers included in the headings or catchlines immediately preceding the texts of such sections, do not constitute part of the law. All derivation and other notes set out in Nevada Revised Statutes are given for the purpose of convenient reference, and do not constitute part of the law.

5. Whenever any reference is made to any portion of Nevada Revised Statutes or of any other law of this state or of the United States, such reference shall apply to all amendments and additions thereto now or hereafter made.

SEC. 5. Effect of Enactment of NRS and Repealing Clause.

1. The adoption and enactment of Nevada Revised Statutes shall not be construed to repeal or in any way affect or modify:

- (a) Any special, local or temporary laws.
- (b) Any law making an appropriation.
- (c) Any law affecting any bond issue or by which any bond issue may have been authorized.
- (d) The running of the statutes of limitations in force at the time this act becomes effective.
- (e) The continued existence and operation of any department, agency or office heretofore legally established or held.
- (f) Any bond of any public officer.

(g) Any taxes, fees, assessments or other charges incurred or imposed.

(h) Any statutes authorizing, ratifying, confirming, approving or accepting any compact or contract with any other state or with the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof.

2. All laws, rights and obligations set forth in subsection 1 of this section shall continue and exist in all respects as if Nevada Revised Statutes had not been adopted and enacted.

3. The repeal of prior laws and statutes provided in section 3 of this act shall not affect any act done, or any cause of action accrued or established, nor any plea, defense, bar or matter subsisting before the time when such repeal shall take effect; but the proceedings in every case shall conform with the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes.

4. All the provisions of laws and statutes repealed by section 3 of this act shall be deemed to have remained in force from the time when they began to take effect, so far as they may apply to any department, agency, office, or trust, or any transaction, or event, or any limitation, or any right, or obligation, or the construction of any contract already affected by such laws, notwithstanding the repeal of such provisions.

5. No fine, forfeiture or penalty incurred under laws or statutes existing prior to the time Nevada Revised Statutes take effect shall be affected by repeal of such existing laws or statutes, but the recovery of such fines and forfeitures and the enforcement of such penalties shall be effected as if the law or statute repealed had still remained in effect.

6. When an offense is committed prior to the time Nevada Revised Statutes take effect, the offender shall be punished under the law or statute in effect when the offense was committed.

7. No law or statute which heretofore has been repealed shall be revived by the repeal provided in section 3 of this act.

8. The repeal by section 3 of this act of a law or statute validating previous acts, contracts or transactions shall not affect the validity of such acts, contracts or transactions, but the same shall remain as valid as if there had been no such repeal.

9. If any provision of the Nevada Revised Statutes as enacted by this act, derived from an act that amended or repealed a preexisting statute, is held unconstitutional, the provisions of section 3 of this act shall not prevent the preexisting statute from being law if that appears to have been the intent of the legislature or the people.

SEC. 6. Severability of Provisions. If any provision of the Nevada Revised Statutes or amendments thereto, or the application thereof to any person, thing or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the provisions or application of the Nevada Revised Statutes or such amendments that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes and such amendments are declared to be severable.

SEC. 7. Effective Date. This act, and each and all of the laws and

statutes herein contained and hereby enacted as the Nevada Revised Statutes, shall take effect upon passage and approval.

SEC. 8. Omission From Session Laws. The provisions of NRS 1.010 to 710.590, inclusive, appearing following section 9 of this act shall not be printed or included in the Statutes of Nevada as provided by NRS 218.500 and NRS 218.510; but there shall be inserted immediately following section 9 of this act the words: "(Here followed NRS 1.010 to 710.590, inclusive.)"

SEC. 9. Content of Nevada Revised Statutes. The following laws and statutes attached hereto, consisting of NRS sections 1.010 to 710.590, inclusive, constitute the Nevada Revised Statutes:

(Here followed NRS 1.010 to 710.590, inclusive.)

Senate Bill No. 3—Committee on Judiciary

CHAPTER 3

AN ACT to amend NRS section 218.310 relating to drafting of bills, and to amend NRS sections 220.100, 220.130, 220.160 and 220.170 relating to the duties of the statute revision commission.

[Approved January 25, 1957]

*The People of the State of Nevada, represented in Senate and Assembly,
do enact as follows:*

SECTION 1. NRS 218.310 is hereby amended to read as follows:

218.310 1. Bills to amend existing general statutes *and all bills to enact new statutes of a general, public and permanent nature shall be deemed amendments to NRS and shall contain reference to [sections of] NRS. [in the body of the bill rather than in the title.]*

2. New matter shall be indicated by underscoring in the typewritten copy and italics in the printed copy **[.]** *except in bills to add new chapters or Titles to NRS and which do not amend existing sections of NRS.*

3. Matter to be omitted shall be indicated by brackets in the typewritten copy and brackets or strike-out type in the printed copy.

4. In the drafting and printing of bills all matter appearing as omitted and bracketed in previously enacted and printed statutes shall be omitted entirely.

SEC. 2. NRS 220.100 is hereby amended to read as follows:

220.100 1. As soon as practicable after May 1, 1951, the commission shall commence the preparation of a complete revision and compilation of the laws of the State of Nevada of general application, and a compilation of the constitution of the State of Nevada, together with brief annotations to sections thereof.

2. The revision when completed shall be known as Nevada Revised Statutes **[, _____,]** and the year of first publication shall be filled in in the blank space of the title. For brevity the title may be cited as NRS **[_____]** *and may be cited as NRS followed by the number of the Title, chapter or section, as appropriate.*

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL

COPY OF ORIGINAL ENACTED BILL
RECEIVED FROM NEVADA STATE ARCHIVES
NOVEMBER 15, 2013

STATE OF NEVADA
EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT

RECEIVED

Date Jan 23, 1957

Hour 10:47 AM.

No. of Sheets One

Time Limit for Action by Governor

Expires on Jan. 28, 1957

Parker Tuddell
Secretary to Governor.

STATE OF NEVADA
OFFICE OF SECRETARY OF STATE

RECEIVED AND FILED

Date JAN 23 1957

Hour 1:10 P.M.

John Rooney
Secretary of State.

By Minnie J. [Signature]
Receiving Clerk.

SENATE BILL NO. 2

Ray Bell
President of the Senate.

J. E. Rowntree
Secretary of the Senate.

Wm. L. [Signature]
Speaker of the Assembly.

[Signature]
Chief Clerk of the Assembly.

STATE OF NEVADA
EXECUTIVE DEPARTMENT

APPROVED

Date January 25, 1957

Hour 10:25 a.m.

Charles N. Russell
Governor.

SENATE

BILL
RESOLUTION

No. 2

Introduced by Senator.....
Committee on

Judiciary

JAN 22 1957

—Read first time. Referred to.....Committee on/of

To printer.

—From printer. To committee.

—Withdrawn from committee. Re-referred to Committee

on.....

—From committee: Amend, and do pass as amended.

—From committee: Re-refer to Committee on.....

—From committee: Without recommendation.

—From committee: Do.....pass.

—Re-referred to Committee on.....

—From committee:

—From majority committee:

—From minority committee:

—Read second time. To engrossment.

—Read second time. Amended. Reprinting dispensed with.
To engrossment.

—Read second time. Amended. To printer.

—From printer. To engrossment.

—~~Reported~~ Engrossed.



.....—Read third time. Amended. To printer.
.....—From printer. To re-engrossment.
.....—~~Reported~~ re-engrossed.
.....—Re-referred to Committee on.....

.....—From committee:

JAN 22 1957 —All rules suspended. Bill.....
considered engrossed, declared an emergency measure
under the Constitution, and placed on third reading and
final passage.

.....—Read third time. Amended. Reprinting dispensed with.
Passed, as amended. Title approved.
To re-engrossment.

JAN 22 1957 —~~Reported~~ re-engrossed. To Assembly.
.....—Read third time. Passed.

Title approved. To Assembly.

Leola H Wohlfeil

Assistant Secretary

Check here if amendments are stapled to back of bill.

IN ASSEMBLY

JAN 23 1957 —Read first time. Referred to.....Committee on/of
..... To committee.

.....—From committee: Do.....pass.

.....—Read second time.

.....—From committee: Amend, and do pass as amended.

.....—Read second time. Amended. Reprinting dispensed with.
To re-engrossment.

.....—Read second time. Amended. To printer.

.....—Read third time. Amended. To printer.

.....—From printer. To re-engrossment.

.....—~~Reported~~ re-engrossed.

JAN 23 1957 —All rules suspended. Bill.....
considered engrossed, declared an emergency measure
under the Constitution, and placed on third reading and
final passage.

.....—Read third time. Amended. Reprinting dispensed with.
Passed, as amended. Title approved.
To re-engrossment.

JAN 23 1957 —~~Reported~~ re-engrossed. To Senate.

JAN 23 1957 —Read third time. Passed.

Title approved. To Senate.

J. J. [Signature]
Assistant Chief Clerk

Check here if amendments are stapled to back of bill.

Place top of amendment blank on this line, staple as indicated, then fold once.

Sec. 2. Destination and Citation

3.

not shall not amend the existing statute from being law in that
statute, is held unconstitutional, the provisions of section 3 of this
this act, hereby law as act that amended or repealed a provision
3. If the provision of the laws relating statutes as enacted by
lawful as well as if there had been no such request.
request of such acts, contracts or provisions, but the same shall
the provisions shall constitute or provisions shall not affect the
S. The request in section 3 of this act or a law or statute which
repealed by the request provided in section 3 of this act.

IN SENATE

—Assembly amendments concurred in.

JAN 24 1957

To enrollment, IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE
PROVISIONS OF SENATE CONCURRENT
RESOLUTION No. 1.

H. E. Rowland
Secretary

~~Resolving Committee on Engrossed and Enrolled Bills~~

JAN 25 1957

Enrolled and delivered to Governor.

—Enrolled and delivered to Secretary of State.

Mary Corlett
~~Chairman, Committee on Engrossed and Enrolled Bills~~
Amendment Clerk

SUMMARY—Enacts Nevada Revised Statutes as the law of the State of Nevada to supersede all prior laws of a general, public and permanent nature.

AN ACT to revise the laws and statutes of the State of Nevada of a general or public nature; to adopt and enact such revised laws and statutes, to be known as the Nevada Revised Statutes, as the law of the State of Nevada; to repeal all prior laws and statutes of a general, public and permanent nature; providing penalties; and other matters relating thereto.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN SENATE AND ASSEMBLY,
DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Enactment of Nevada Revised Statutes. The Nevada Revised Statutes, being the statute laws set forth after section 9 of this act, are hereby adopted and enacted as law of the State of Nevada.

Sec. 2. Designation and Citation. The Nevada Revised Statutes adopted and enacted into law by this act, and as hereafter amended and supplemented and printed and published pursuant to law, shall be known as Nevada Revised Statutes and may be cited as "NRS" followed by the number of the Title, chapter or section, as appropriate.

Sec. 3. Repeal of Prior Laws. Except as provided in section 5 of this act and unless expressly continued by specific provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes, all laws and statutes of the State of Nevada of a general, public and permanent nature enacted prior to January 21, 1957, hereby are repealed.

Sec. 4. Construction of Act.

1. The Nevada Revised Statutes, as enacted by this act, are intended to speak for themselves; and all sections of the Nevada Revised Statutes as so enacted shall be considered to speak as of the same date, except that in cases of conflict between two or more sections or of any ambiguity in a section, reference may be had to the acts from which the sections are derived, for the purpose of applying the rules of construction relating to repeal or amendment by implication or for the purpose of resolving the ambiguity.

2. The provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes as enacted by this act shall be considered as substituted in a continuing way for the

provisions of the prior laws and statutes repealed by section 3 of this act.

3. The incorporation of initiated and referred measures is not to be deemed a legislative reenactment or amendment thereof, but only a mechanical inclusion thereof into the Nevada Revised Statutes.

4. The various analyses set out in Nevada Revised Statutes, constituting enumerations or lists of the Titles, chapters and sections of Nevada Revised Statutes, and the descriptive headings or catchlines immediately preceding or within the texts of individual sections, except the section numbers included in the headings or catchlines immediately preceding the texts of such sections, do not constitute part of the law. All derivation and other notes set out in Nevada Revised Statutes are given for the purpose of convenient reference, and do not constitute part of the law.

5. Whenever any reference is made to any portion of Nevada Revised Statutes or of any other law of this state or of the United States, such reference shall apply to all amendments and additions thereto now or hereafter made.

Sec. 5. Effect of Enactment of NRS and Repealing Clause.

1. The adoption and enactment of Nevada Revised Statutes shall not be construed to repeal or in any way affect or modify:

- (a) Any special, local or temporary laws.
- (b) Any law making an appropriation.
- (c) Any law affecting any bond issue or by which any bond issue may have been authorized.
- (d) The running of the statutes of limitations in force at the time this act becomes effective.
- (e) The continued existence and operation of any department, agency or office heretofore legally established or held.
- (f) Any bond of any public officer.
- (g) Any taxes, fees, assessments or other charges incurred or imposed.
- (h) Any statutes authorizing, ratifying, confirming, approving or accepting any compact or contract with any other state or with the United States or any agency or instrumentality thereof.

2. All laws, rights and obligations set forth in subsection 1 of this section shall continue and exist in all respects as if Nevada Revised Statutes had not been adopted and enacted.

3. The repeal of prior laws and statutes provided in section 3 of this act shall not affect any act done, or any cause of action accrued or established, nor any plea, defense, bar or matter subsisting before the time when such repeal shall take effect; but the proceedings in every case shall conform with the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes.

4. All the provisions of laws and statutes repealed by section 3 of this act shall be deemed to have remained in force from the time when they began to take effect, so far as they may apply to any department, agency, office, or trust, or any transaction, or event, or any limitation, or any right, or obligation, or the construction of any contract already affected by such laws, notwithstanding the repeal of such provisions.

5. No fine, forfeiture or penalty incurred under laws or statutes existing prior to the time Nevada Revised Statutes take effect shall be affected by repeal of such existing laws or statutes, but the recovery of such fines and forfeitures and the enforcement of such penalties shall be effected as if the law or statute repealed had still remained in effect.

6. When an offense is committed prior to the time Nevada Revised Statutes take effect, the offender shall be punished under the law or statute in effect when the offense was committed.

7. No law or statute which heretofore has been repealed shall be revived by the repeal provided in section 3 of this act.

8. The repeal by section 3 of this act of a law or statute validating previous acts, contracts or transactions shall not affect the validity of such acts, contracts or transactions, but the same shall remain as valid as if there had been no such repeal.

9. If any provision of the Nevada Revised Statutes as enacted by this act, derived from an act that amended or repealed a preexisting statute, is held unconstitutional, the provisions of section 3 of this act shall not prevent the preexisting statute from being law if that

appears to have been the intent of the legislature or the people.

Sec. 6. Severability of Provisions. If any provision of the Nevada Revised Statutes or amendments thereto, or the application thereof to any person, thing or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the provisions or application of the Nevada Revised Statutes or such amendments that can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of Nevada Revised Statutes and such amendments are declared to be severable.

Sec. 7. Effective Date. This act, and each and all of the laws and statutes herein contained and hereby enacted as the Nevada Revised Statutes, shall take effect upon passage and approval.

Sec. 8. Omission From Session Laws. The provisions of NRS 1.010 to 710.590, inclusive, appearing following section 9 of this act shall not be printed or included in the Statutes of Nevada as provided by NRS 218.500 and NRS 218.510; but there shall be inserted immediately following section 9 of this act the words: "(Here followed NRS 1.010 to 710.590, inclusive.)"

Sec. 9. Content of Nevada Revised Statutes. The following laws and statutes attached hereto, consisting of NRS sections 1.010 to 710.590, inclusive, constitute the Nevada Revised Statutes: